TOWNSHIP OF LOWER MAKEFIELD
ZONING HEARING BOARD
MINUTES - MAY 15, 2006

The regular meeting of the Zoning Hearing Board of the Township of Lower Makefield
was held in the Municipal Building on May 15, 2006. Chairman Kirk called the meeting
to order at 7:35 p.m.

Those present:

Zoning Hearing Board: Barbara Kirk, Chairman
Rudolph Mayrhofer, Vice Chairman
David Malinowski, Secretary
Paul Bamburak, Member
Paul Kim, Alternate Member

Others: Robert Habgood, Code Enforcement Officer
: David Truelove, Township Solicitor
James Majewski, Township Engineer
Allen Toadvine, Zoning Hearing Board Solicitor

Absent: Grace Godshalk, Supervisor Liaison

APPEAL #06-1370 - BOXWOOD FARM LLC

Ms. Kirk stated this had been continued from 5/2/06. The Board has since received a
letter from the Applicant’s attorney dated 5/12/06 indicating that Boxwood Farm has
withdrawn its Appeal.

APPEAL #06-1365 — THOMAS J. COOPER

Mr. Cooper was present and was reminded that he was still under oath. Ms. Kirk noted
this matter was continued from the Board’s Hearing of 4/18/06. Ms. Kirk stated she
understands there had been significant discussion as to the number of Variances being
requested; and she understands that they are now down to two Variances one from
Section 200-51B(1)(b) requesting disturbance of the resource protected area for a
floodplain and a Variance from Section 200-51B4d regarding no filling, grading,
clearing, or development is permitted within the wetland or water course buffer area.

Mr. Toadvine stated this is correct. Mr. Truelove stated this concurs with Mr. Donaghy’s
notes from his attendance at the last meeting.

Ms. Kirk stated a Revised Plan has been submitted since that time. This Plan dated
4/25/06 was marked as Exhibit A-3. Attached to that plan is a letter from



May 15, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 2 of 14

Mr. Cooper’s engineer directed to the Township engineer dated 4/20/06 addressing issues
raised by Mr. Majewski, and this was marked as Exhibit A-4.

Mr. Cooper stated they recalculated the final height to indicate that a Variance is not
needed. He stated they had gravel in the original Plan going around the house, and they
changed this to river rock which reduced the impervious surface. They also changed the
driveway width to 12’ and identified the trees on Sheets #1 and #2 which will have to be
removed. Mr. Cooper stated the original entry to the property is off River Road which is
difficult. They now propose to come off Ferry Road and this was shown on the original
Plan and the Revised Plan. They have changed this on the Revised Plan from 14’ wide to
12* wide. Mr. Cooper stated they are proposing to remove the existing kitchen and
rebuild it in a different shape which will result in less impervious surface. The proposed
addition will be built at the same level as the original house which will be raised. The
house is being raised 7 14’.

Mr. Toadvine stated one of the major issues at the last meeting was the amount of fill.
Mr. Majewski stated he reviewed this with the Applicant’s engineer, and it has been
somewhat resolved although he still has a concern with a few issues. He stated one of the
issues is the location of the driveway where it is closest to the septic field, and he feels it
should be scaled back by at least 5° in that area. He noted the top edge of the driveway
near the retaining wall, and it will be almost on top of the septic field. Mr. Cooper was
asked if he would agree to a 5’ separation as a Condition of Approval. Mr. Cooper stated
they already have at least 10° from the tank. Mr. Majewski stated the drain field line
seems to be right on top of the retaining wall and driveway. Mr. Majewski noted this
location on the Plan, and Mr. Cooper agreed to this change.

Mr. Majewski stated a few of the trees they are showing to be removed appear to be
outside of the area of the limit of disturbance. He stated one is a 30” magnolia along
River Road and the other is a 15” pin oak in front of the house along River Road.

Mr. Cooper stated they feel they need to remove the pin oak because they felt there
would be 2’ of soil on the trunk, and they were told it could not survive this. He stated
they would like to keep the magnolia, but when they did the original grading, it was
going to be impacted; although he does not feel it will at this point. Mr. Majewski stated
they would recommend going to a steeper slope in front of the house and would
recommend a three to one slope as opposed to a four to one slope. This would pull the
grading back a sufficient enough distance that the pin oak would not be impacted by fill
on its root structure. Ms. Kirk asked the result of the conversation with Mr. Cooper’s
engineer regarding the slope of grading, and Mr. Majewski stated they submitted the Plan
with the same grading as previously submitted.

Mr. Majewski stated the last issue was discussed at the last meeting regarding the
sidewalks around both side of the house and whether this was necessary.



May 15, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 3 of 14

Ms. Kirk stated the Notes from the prior meeting indicated that Mr. Cooper felt it was
necessary. Mr. Cooper stated they have a concrete tile roof with no gutters and they
cannot go onto the roof to clear gutters, and they feel they need the sidewalks as shown
so that when the rain spills off the roof, they will not have erosion issues.

Mr. Toadvine asked if there are impervious surface issues, and Mr. Majewski stated a
Variance may be needed for impervious surface. He stated although they are reducing
the impervious surface by 1,000 square feet, the total they have proposed is above what is
required in the Zoning District. He stated an impervious surface ratio of 0.13 is required.
Existing is 0.19, and while they are reducing it to 0.167, it is still over what is permitted.
Mr. Habgood stated because this home existed when the R-RP District was created, he
feels they fall under the R-2 requirements which are 18%; and they do not therefore have
an impervious surface issue.

Ms. Kirk stated she read a lot of discussion on the amount of fill being proposed which is
600 cubic yards. Mr. Cooper stated this was the number that the Township engineer
gave. He stated they only proposed the dimensions of the fill, and they did not request a
specific yardage. He stated they have proposed a four to one slope and the issue with this
has to do with cutting the grass; and he would prefer not to make it so steep that it will be
a safety problem for his children cutting the grass in order to save the pin oak.

Mr. Kim stated he assumes that the height of the fill they are proposing is the minimum
requirement, and Mr. Cooper stated they are motivated financially to keep the fill as little
as possible.

Mr. Mayrhofer stated he is familiar with the impact the floods had on this property and
they need to do what they can to protect their home. Mr. Cooper stated he also wants to
maintain the character of the house.

Mr. Truelove stated the Township would adopt the positions of the Township engineer.
There was no public comment.

Ms. Kirk moved, Mr. Mayrhofer seconded and it was unanimously carried that the
Application for a Variance from Section 200-51B(1)(b) be granted and that a Variance
from Section 200-51B4d be granted as proposed in the Applicant’s revised Plan marked
as Exhibit A-3 subject to the following Conditions: That the proposed driveway as
shown on Exhibit A-3, the top of the driveway be at least 5° from the septic tank drain
field line and that the Applicant not remove the 30” magnolia tree and do everything in
his effort to try to preserve the 15 pin oak tree.



May 15, 2006 Zoning Hearing Board — page 4 of 14

APPEAL #06-1371 — JOSEPH AND JEAN MARIE CONNER

Mr. Joseph and Ms. Jean Marie Conner, 1084 Lily Pond Lane, were present and were
sworn in. The Application submitted was marked as Exhibit A-1. Attached to the
Application was a Plot Plan for the property dated 5/9/96 which was marked as Exhibit
A-2,

Mr. Conner stated they had contracted with a tree service to have six trees removed from
their property. They believed the trees were their responsibility since they were on their
property and they had safety concerns about the trees as they were leaning toward their
home. They also had concerns for the children playing in this area. They did not
understand the ramifications of their actions. Mr. Conner stated he understood the
Conservation Easement existed, but felt it was his responsibility since the trees were on
his property; and if there was a safety concern, that he was responsible for removing the
trees. He stated they learned that day as the trees were being removed that it was outside
of their authority to do this and they were notified of such and then filed an Application
for the Variance. He stated they now understand the ramifications of what they have
done. They have trees in various stages of removal and leaving them as is, is of an even
greater concern because two of the six trees are now twenty to twenty-five foot stumps.
Mr. Conner stated two of the trees are down to the ground, two are four foot high stumps,
and two are twenty to twenty-five feet high. All limbs have been removed.

Mr. Truelove stated they have photographs to show the Board. Mr. Conner stated he
also has photographs and these were presented to the Board this evening.

Ms. Kirk asked who holds the Conservation Easement, but Mr. Conner did not know.
Ms. Kirk asked if anyone explained to them that there was a Conservation Easement
when they purchased their property. Mr. Conner stated they did a “For Sale By Owner”
and they received the formal notification required which is full disclosure.

Mr. Toadvine asked if there is a formal document recorded depicting this as an Easement,
but Mr. Conner stated he is not aware of this and is going by the Plot Plan which says
“Conservation Easement.” Mr. Majewski stated he did not to a Title Search for the
easement of the property, but it is shown on the record Plan for the Subdivision and is
shown on the survey of the property that was done at the time of closing by the
developer. Mr. Toadvine asked if there were any Plan Notes they found which dealt with
this Conservation Easement, but Mr. Majewski stated he did not review this.

Mr. Majewski stated there is a wetlands limit line within the area as well which is shown
on the Plan. Mr. Toadvine asked if the home is part of a Homeowners’ Association, and
Mr. Conner stated it is not. Mr. Toadvine stated it may just be a Plan Note. Ms. Kirk
asked if it had ever been dedication to the Township, and Mr. Truelove stated they have
no record of this. Mr. Conner stated the trees are on his property. Ms. Kirk stated while
the trees are on his property, if there is an Easement, he would not be permitted to do

































